
 Agenda

Page 1

Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board (4)

Time and Date
2.00 pm on Wednesday, 19th September, 2018

Place
Committee Room 3, Council House, Coventry

Public Business

1. Apologies and Substitutions  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. MInutes  (Pages 3 - 6)

a) To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 July, 2018

b) Any matters arising

4. European City of Sport 2019  (Pages 7 - 10)

Briefing Note of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

5. Flytipping in Coventry  (Pages 11 - 14)

Briefing Note of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

6. Work Programme and Outstanding Issues 2018/19  (Pages 15 - 18)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) 

7. Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as 
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved  

Private Business
Nil

Martin Yardley, Deputy Chief Executive (Place), Council House Coventry

Tuesday, 11 September 2018

Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 
Suzanne Bennett Tel: 024 7683 3072  Email: suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk

Membership: Councillors N Akhtar (Chair), R Ali, R Bailey, T  Khan, K Sandhu, 
T Sawdon, H Sweet, R Thay and S Walsh

Public Document Pack



Page 2

By invitation Councillors P Akhtar, R Ali, K Caan, A Khan   

Please note: a hearing loop is available in the committee rooms

If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting 
OR it you would like this information in another format or 
language please contact us.

Suzanne Bennett
Telephone: (024) 7683 3072
e-mail: Suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk



– 1 –

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board (4) 

held at 2.00 pm on Wednesday, 11 July 2018

Present:
Members: Councillor N Akhtar (Chair)

Councillor R Ali
Councillor R Bailey
Councillor Clifford (substitute for Councillor Walsh)
Councillor T Khan
Councillor K Sandhu
Councillor T Sawdon
Councillor H Sweet
Councillor R Thay

Other Members: Councillor R Lakha, Deputy Cabinet Member for City Services

Officers by Directorate:
Place: S Bennett, C Hickin, G Holmes, G Hood, A Walster 

Apologies                             Councillors S Walsh and J Innes

Public Business

1. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

2. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 April, 2018 were agreed and signed as a 
true record.

There were no matters arising.

3. Update on Changes to Waste Collection Services 

The Scrutiny Board considered a presentation of the Deputy Chief Executive, 
Place, which provided performance data following the introduction of an alternate 
weekly collection for waste in the City that was introduced in September, 2017.

The presentation covered:-

• The alternate weekly collections:-

Week 1

• Fortnightly residual waste collections – Reduction from 17 to 12 
  collections rounds

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



– 2 –

Week 2

• Fortnightly comingled recycling – Increase from 9 to 10 
  collection rounds

• Fortnightly food and garden waste across the year.

• Performance data for:-

• Residual Waste (which had seen a 17% reduction in tonnage 
  collected over the 9 months)

• Recycling (which had seen a 14% increase in tonnage collected 
  over the 9 months)

• Food and garden waste (which had seen a 28% increase in 
   tonnage collected over the 9 months)

• Complaints profile during the service changes (which were currently 
  lower than before the introduction of the new service) 

The Scrutiny Board were informed of investigations currently taking place to 
improve the service with the increased use of ICT which would enable live 
information to be provided in relation to missed bin collections etc.

The Scrutiny Board questioned officers on aspects of the new service including:-

• Action taken in relation to inconsiderate parking which prevents 
  refuse vehicles from accessing properties

• Weight restriction on refuse vehicles 

• How missed collections are logged and rescheduled

• The current technology being used in refuse vehicles and steps 
   being taken to improve it’s use

• Impact on the service of an ageing population

RESOLVED that the Scrutiny Board note the update on changes to the waste 
collection service following the introduction of alternate weekly collections 
and request that a further update be provided in 9-12 months time.   

4. Unauthorised Encampments 

The Scrutiny Board considered a Briefing Note of the Deputy Chief Executive, 
Place, which provided an overview of unauthorised encampments in the City. In 
recent years, various areas of the City have experienced regular unauthorised 
encampments, some of which have caused concern, uncertaincy, disruption and, 
on occasions, conflict locally. 

Page 4



– 3 –

Unauthorised encampments tend to be seasonal in nature and occur between the 
months of April – September. Peak periods tend to occur locally around the 
Kenilworth Horse Fair which is held in April and September. Where possible, the 
Council seeks to protect its land with fortifications, which is a major undertaking, 
given the variety and number of parcels of land owned by the City Council. An 
Appendix to the Briefing Note contained details of the number of unauthorised 
encampments and a further Appendix detailed money invested in site protection, 
clean-up costs and eviction costs.

Addressing the issues arising from such encampments often requires significant 
resources from the Police and Local Authority. These agencies seek to ensure a 
positive, coordinated and informed approach to all aspects of management of 
unauthorised encampments, whether that relates to initial identification of such 
encampments, making assessments of the needs of persons on site (which is a 
legal requirement for public bodies), assessing and deciding upon the correct and 
proportionate course of action and, where necessary, taking enforcement action.

The Briefing Note detailed the 3 following possible courses of action in relation to 
unauthorised encampments on highways, council owned land or common land:-

• Decision not to evict immediately

• Decision to Evict (Local Authority Powers)

• Decision to Evict (Police Powers)

In determining the course of action, a balancing exercise is undertaken between 
the rights of those encamped, the rights of the landowner, the rights of those 
lawfully entitled to use the land and the rights of the local community. 

In relation to practice elsewhere in the region, in 2017, Sandwell MBC created a 
purpose built transit site for the travelling community. This action was 
accompanied by court injunctions prohibiting unauthorised encampments at 17 
specific sites in their borough, which has been subsequently increased to a whole 
borough court injunction. In the event of an unauthorised encampment, the Police 
have agreed to use their powers under s.62 of the Criminal Justice and Public 
Order Act 1994, to immediately evict the unauthorised campers and direct them to 
the transit site. To date, it has not been necessary for the Police to use these 
powers in Sandwell.
 
This had had an impact on neighbouring local authorities. Wolverhampton MBC 
has seen a 24% increase in unauthorised encampments in their area. 
Wolverhampton have subsequently identified an area for their own transit site and 
are proceeding with this course of action. It is likely that other local authorities in 
this area will follow suit.

The Scrutiny Board questioned officers on aspects of the Briefing Note including:-

• Issues relating to the Travellers site at Siskin Drive
• Defences used at different sites in the City and their effectiveness
• Action taken once an encampment takes place and information 

Page 5



– 4 –

  provided to Ward Councillors in relation to this
• Clean up operations, particularly in relation to children’s play areas
• The possibility of a transit site in Coventry

RESOLVED that the Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board (4) 
notes the contents of the Briefing Note and:-

1) Endorses the actions taken by officers to protect land owned by 
the City Council and deal with unauthorised encampments

2) Requests that the Cabinet Member for Policing and Equalities be 
informed of the Scrutiny Board’s support for exploring the 
possibility of establishing a transit site in Coventry and that any 
proposals relating to this be considered by Scrutiny. 

5. Work Programme and Outstanding Issues 2018/19 

The Scrutiny Board considered their Work Programme for 2018/19 and identified 
the following items for future consideration:-

Parking enforcement, speed cameras and city centre parking- October 
meeting

Public toilets – December meeting

Review of residents parking scheme – future meeting

RESOLVED that the Scrutiny Board’s Work Programme be updated to 
incorporate the issues identified above.

6. Any other items of Urgent Public Business 

There were no other items of urgent public business.

(Meeting closed at 3.30 pm)

Page 6



 Briefing note 

To:  Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board (4)
Date: 19th September 2018

Subject: European City of Sport 2019  

1 Purpose of the Note

1.1 To inform the Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board of current activity in relation 
to the development of Coventry’s year as European City of Sport 2019.

1.2 To seek the support and guidance of the Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board 
in facilitating the successful delivery of European City of Sport 2019.

2 Recommendations
2.1 The Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board is recommended:

1) To consider the content of the presentation for European City of Sport 2019

2) To support the Cabinet Member in the delivery of a successful title year for Coventry

3) To make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Public Health and Sport in 
order to support and secure delivery of a successful title year for Coventry.

3 Background
3.1 In 2017, the Chair of the Coventry Sport Network – David Moorcroft OBE – was approached 

by a UK delegate of ACES Europe inviting Coventry to bid for the European City of Sport 
title.  ACES Europe had, for the first time ever, nominated and invited Coventry to bid for the 
title due to the levels of investment and impact that sport and physical activity were having 
within the city due to the 10-year partnership Sports Strategy. 

3.2 ACES Europe is a non-profit association based in Brussels which, since 2001, assigns every 
year the recognitions of European Capital, City, Community and Town of Sport.

3.3 Cities are invited to bid for the awards after being recommended by existing ACES Europe 
members/previous award winners. These recommendations are focused on cities that are 
recognised as placing sport and physical activity in high importance to local society.

3.4 In September 2017, following the approach from ACES Europe, the Chair of the Coventry 
Sport Network approached the Cabinet Member for Public Health and Sport and the Lord 
Mayor of Coventry to seek approval for Coventry to express an interest to be considered as 
a European City of Sport in 2019. 

3.5 The Expression of Interest was agreed and a letter was drafted by Council officers to highlight 
some of the key achievements attained as part of delivering the Coventry Sports Strategy 
2014 – 2024. This was then sent to ACES Europe for consideration.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2

3.6 In January 2018, ACES Europe contacted the Council to request that Coventry submit a Bid 
File and host a delegation visit from ACES Europe to allow them to assess the city against 
the criteria to become a European City of Sport for 2019. 

3.7 In April 2018, Coventry hosted a visit of ACES Europe delegates.  

3.8 In May 2018 Coventry was awarded the title of European City of Sport 2019. The Leader of 
the Council announced Coventry had been awarded the title at the Council’s Annual General 
Meeting (AGM). The judges noted that the Coventry’s bid and host visit was one of the best 
that they had been involved in.

4 Information and Update
4.1 The European City of Sport 2019 bid was a partnership bid that was supported by the 

Coventry Sport Network and officers across the Council. The bid was also endorsed by the 
Coventry City of Culture Trust and West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA), and was 
formally supported as part of the build up to the Commonwealth Games 2022 in which 
Coventry will be a host for Netball. 

4.2 The Coventry Sport Network is a group of strategic stakeholders that supports the delivery 
of the 10 year Coventry Sports Strategy, working collaboratively to deliver against its aims 
and strategic objectives. The bid file completed was a collaboration of all partners in the city 
to highlight the achievements of the city and to indicate the approach to the delivery of 2019. 

4.3 European City of Sport 2019 in Coventry is based upon three key themes that will ensure 
that the objective to deliver a successful year is achieved. The three themes are ‘Culture and 
Sport’, ‘Year of Wellbeing’ and Celebrate. 

5 Culture and Sport 
5.1 Coventry has been selected as UK City of Culture 2021.  Coventry partners are working to 

break down divisions between sport, movement, physical activity and culture – not least 
because the likes of dance, movement, performing arts and sports such as synchronised 
swimming and gymnastics can be considered to cross such formal boundaries. 

5.2 The aim during 2019 is to further align sport and physical activity to culture and embed the 
opportunities for bringing communities together in advance of 2021. This supports both the 
Coventry Sport Strategy and Coventry Cultural Strategy, as both have key aims to get people 
who live and work in the city ‘moving more’ within more active lifestyles.

5.3 Partners across the city have already used cultural collaborations in their sporting 
programmes.  For example, as part of GoSWIM in 2017, leisure partners worked with cultural 
organisations to install a giant moon above the 50 metre pool and commissioned cultural 
performances and a range of events in Coventry Sports and Leisure Centre to coincide with 
this.

5.4 Through European City of Sport 2019, it is planned to give community organisations the 
opportunity to pilot and test new ideas that link sport and culture across the year, so that in 
2021 we can produce established and innovative events, which in particular look at how sport 
can be a route into culture, and vice versa – particularly in communities where levels of 
participation are at their lowest.  

6 Year of Wellbeing 
6.1 2019 will be the Year of Wellbeing for Coventry, with partners supporting the city’s 

Sustainability and Transformation Plan and acting as a forerunner to the City of Culture year 
in 2021. This will be a year of activities built upon engaging with, and across communities, 
to focus and ‘step up’ efforts in preventing both physical and mental illness by focusing on 
healthy lifestyles. Promotion of physical activity will be a key theme as a vehicle for improving 
physical and mental health and reducing social isolation and loneliness. 

Page 8



3

6.2 Since the award, Coventry has been working closely with Sport England, with a specific focus 
around tackling inequalities in participation. Utilising local and national knowledge, partner 
organisations in Coventry will work with Sport England to maximise the opportunities 
presented by the European City of Sport 2019 title and the aligned Year of Wellbeing.  

7 Celebrate 

7.1 Coventry was nominated to apply to become a European City of Sport due to the commitment 
the city has shown through investing in sport, leisure and physical activity facilities and 
activities. 

7.2 Over the course of 2019, Coventry is planning to open a number of state-of-the-art sports 
and leisure facilities within the city that will transform sporting and physical activity 
opportunities for the city’s residents

7.3 With over £100 million of sports and physical activity facility investment planned within 
Coventry or underway, the European City of Sport 2019 marks a landmark year to remember 
for sport, physical activity and leisure in the city.

7.4 The Council and wider partners plan to use the European City of Sport 2019 status to 
celebrate sport and activity in the city, and in particular to highlight a number of new and 
planned facilities below:

 The opening of the new city centre waterpark
 The completion of the University of Warwick Sport and Wellness Hub
 The opening of a new 50m swimming pool at the Alan Higgs Centre
 A programme in 44 parks and open spaces to celebrate the new walking and running 

routes / development of Stage 2 of Coventry on the Move in Parks
 The impact of the Health and Life Science building at Coventry University
 The development of a new indoor bowls centre
 The opening of seven artificial cricket wickets and outdoor nets in local community 

facilities

7.5 The city also plans to enhance its annual events programme, creating European City of Sport 
themed events at: professional sports games in Coventry; Coventry Sports Week; Coventry 
Half Marathon etc. but in addition, ensuring sport and movement are central to a range of 
cultural events. 

7.6 Coventry Sport Network and a number of stakeholders within the city are working collectively 
to establish a programme of events, programmes and initiatives as part of the year that will 
be launched in 2018. Capital facility projects that are in due to open in 2019 will also be 
aligned to promotional campaigns that will go hand in hand with the European City of Sport 
year in order to encourage more people into more active lifestyles. 

7.7 Planning for and across European City of Sport will be linked to readiness structures for UK 
City of Culture.  The Cabinet Member for Public Health and Sport is guiding the development 
of the plans for 2019, with regular planning meetings and updates from Council officers. 

7.8 The presentation to the Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board will outline the 
themes of the bid and highlight some of the projects that will be central to the delivery of a 
successful European City of Sport 2019.  

8 Officer Contacts
David Nuttall
Head of Service - Sports, Culture and Destination
Coventry City Council

Jonathan Hunt 
Development Manager Sport & Active Recreation 
Coventry City Council

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 Briefing note 

To:       Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board 4     Date: 19th September 2017

Subject: Fly tipping in Coventry 

1 Purpose of the Note
1.1 Members requested details of the progress that is being made to tackle fly-tipping in the 

city.

2 Recommendations
2.1 Members of the Communities and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Board (4)

1) Note the actions and programmes in place to tackle fly tipping.

2) Make recommendations as appropriate to the Cabinet Member (Policing and 
Equalities).

3 Information/Background
3.1 Fly tipping in Coventry has increased in the last 12 months; Appendix 1 compares the 

number of fly tipping episodes in the years 2016/17 and 201718. This needs to be set 
against a rising trend nationally and locally; Appendix 2 compares Coventry’s total fly 
tipping episodes with those of our near neighbours and as a factor of population size.

3.2 The increase in fly tipping and our response was exacerbated by a number of factors:

3.2.1 Change in legislation and the cost of waste disposal. The cost of waste disposal has 
risen in recent years and there is a temptation to avoid paying for correct disposal. In 
particular, the legislation around the disposal of refrigerators was ‘tightened’ and made 
more onerous and as a result scrap metal collectors are reluctant to take this type of waste 
and will want payment. This one factor resulted in an additional ‘white goods’ being fly 
tipped; this represents 12% of the total.

3.2.2 Savings made on waste collection, street cleansing and enforcement. In the past few 
years savings of £2.5 M were made on waste collections, street cleansing and 
enforcement, the effects of these savings are still being absorbed by the relevant services. 
It is a well-known fact that cluttered streets increase the likelihood of fly tipping. The degree 
to which the saving programmes have increased fly tipping in the city is difficult to quantify 
against a back drop of increased fly tipping nationally. Although austerity programmes to 
save money here and elsewhere in the country will almost certainly have had an effect.

3.2.3 In February 2016 the service which previously covered environmental crime, was 
amalgamated with other services that enforced noise nuisance and anti-social behaviour; 
the total number of officers working in these combined areas was reduced by 10. 
Furthermore, the service now operates 7 days per week from 9am to 3am the following 
day; whilst this gives greater flexibility, resilience and is easier for residents to report issues 
to, it does mean that remaining resources are spread more thinly. A further smaller 
restructure was made in February 2018 to better align the service to tackle fly tipping.

3.2.4 It should also be recognised the Street Enforcement Team is a multi-disciplinary service 
which responds to a wide variety of issues and not just fly tipping. Appendix 3 details the Page 11

Agenda Item 5



2

issues managed by this team and Appendix 4 gives an indication of the total work that falls 
to this team and increases to the individual officer’s case load. In the year to date the total 
amount of work completed by the team, compared to previous 12 months increased from 
12,706 cases to 13,785, an 8.5% increase.  

4 Measures to address the increase in fly tipping
4.1 It was mentioned in 3.2.3 that a further smaller restructure of the Street Enforcement Team 

was made in February 2018 to better align the service to tackle fly tipping. The restructure 
was designed to create elements of the service that could a) respond rapidly to collect 
evidence and catalogue fly tipping incidents, and b) allow other elements of the service to 
more effectively case manage incidents. Already the changes are paying dividends and the 
amount of enforcement actions have increased. The table below shows the increase in 
enforcement actions:

18.08.16 – 17.08.17 18.08.17 – 17.08.18

Notices served for waste 
offences

244 368

Prosecutions for waste 
offences

20 32

4.2 The Street Enforcement Team along with colleagues in Street Pride wand Waste Services 
will continue to map all instances of fly tipping to better determine where the problem is 
occurring and attempt to understand why this may be the case. In 2018 the Clean Streets 
Programme was introduced by the Cabinet Member for City Services. This programme is 
designed to deal with parts of the city where there is poor compliance with the Council’s 
waste collection rules; the programme is designed to educate local residents, but 
enforcement is used where poor compliance continues.

4.3 Over half of the City’s fly tipping occurs in three wards. The Street Enforcement Team 
together with the Neighbourhood Enforcement Team will continue to work on projects such 
as ‘hot streets’. We have successfully used this early intervention and education initiative 
with residents in these specific areas. Again the recent restructure will facilitate better 
management of the hot streets programme.

4.4 We have continued the programme of introducing new surveillance equipment which, will 
be deployed at areas that we know are frequently fly tipped on. Such deployment often 
leads to a reduction in tipping but also it is hoped that the repeat offenders will be identified 
and ultimately formal action would be taken.

4.5 We have started to engage residents who routinely report issues with the aim of recruiting 
them as Street Champions. This will assist the Council with the reporting of incidents, using 
social media and promoting good practice. This programme started in June 

NAME: Craig Hickin
JOB TITLE: Head of Environmental Services
DIRECTORATE: Place
PHONE: 024 7683 2585
EMAIL: craig.hickin@coventry.gov.uk

Page 12

mailto:craig.hickin@coventry.gov.uk


3

Appendix One: The number of incidents of fly-tipping 

2016 – 2017 totals
Number of fly tipping incidents 3342
2017- 2018 totals
Number of fly tipping incidents 4704
2018 – 2019 (to date – quarter 1)) totals
Number of fly tipping incidents 1669

Appendix Two: Fly tipping in the sub-region
Total number of incidents this period by 
authority

   

Authority 2017/18 Population 
2011 
census

Fly tipping 
per head 
of 
population

Leicester City Council 8512 329,839 0.026
Tamworth Borough Council 1379 76,813 0.018
Walsall MBC 4367 269,323 0.016
North Warwickshire Borough Council 972 62,014 0.016
Birmingham City Council 15993 1,074,300 0.015
Coventry City Council 4704 316,960* 0.015
Sandwell MBC 4695 308,063 0.015
Rugby Borough Council 1068 100,075 0.011
Wolverhampton MBC 2362 249,470 0.009
Warwick District Council 1014 137,648 0.007
Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough 
Council

714 125,252 0.006

Solihull MBC 858 206,700 0.004
Stratford-on-Avon District Council 328 120,500 0.003

*Coventry’s population is currently estimated as 362,000

Appendix Three: Full suite of services managed by the Street Enforcement Team

 Public Space Protection Orders
o Dog Control: Dog fouling, dogs on leads, dogs on lead by direction, dogs 

prohibited and maximum dogs permitted.
o City Centre: Busking, begging, charity subscription collections (Chuggers), 

unauthorised collections, unauthorised street trading, skateboarding and cycling.

 Environmental Crime: 
o Littering
o Fly posting on buildings and street furniture, 
o Fly tipping on public and private land, 
o Refuse and rubbish accumulations in gardens and private land, 
o Waste carriers. Ensuring their legitimacy i.e. scrap men and 'tatters', 
o Waste duty of care (businesses). All businesses are required to have contracts to 

deal with their waste
o Empty homes and the resultant problems

 General nuisance and public health issues: 
o Noise nuisance
o Anti-social behaviour
o Nuisance feeding of birds
o Drainage complaints (businesses only) Page 13



4

o Abandoned vehicles 
o Nuisance Car Sales on the highway,
o Vehicle repairs on the highway
o Obstructions on pavements 
o Odour nuisances from domestic properties
o Bonfires
o Light nuisance from domestic premises
o Illegal Traveller and Gypsy illegal encampments, 
o Invasive plants

Appendix 4: Workload for the Street Enforcement Team

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

SET Total Service Requests

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

Task per Officer

Page 14



Communities and Neighbourhoods Work Programme 2018/19

1

Please see page 2 onwards for background to items

11th July 2018
Alternate Weekly Collection - review
Illegal Encampments
19th September 2018
Fly-tipping
European City of Sport 2019
31st October 2018
Annual report on the work of the Flood Risk Management Team
19th December 2018
13th February 2019
27th March 2019
Date to be decided
The Parking Enforcement Service
Average Speed Enforcement Cameras
Housing Development Infrastructure
City Centre Parking
Highways Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
Public Toilets
Recycled Road Surface Materials
Social Housing Allocations
Illegal Car Washes and the Impact on the Environment
20mph Zones in Urban Areas
 

Last updated 28/08/18

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Communities and Neighbourhoods Work Programme 2018/19

2

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

11th July 
2018

Alternate Weekly 
Collection - review

To review the impact of the Alternate Weekly Collection scheme 
which was introduced in September 2017.

Andrew Walster

Illegal Encampments To look at how the Council responds to illegal encampments. 
Invite WMCA Rep and Sandwell Officer. Ask Cllr Kelly for details.

Cllr A Khan

19th 
September 
2018

Fly-tipping Members would like to know what has been done to address the 
increase in fly-tipping and concerns from residents about this 
problem since it was last considered by the Board in September 
2017.

Craig Hicken
Martin McHugh
Cllr A Khan

European City of Sport 
2019

To scrutinise the benefits for Coventry of becoming the European 
City of Sport, including funding. Also a progress report on the 
water park and the 50m pool

David Nuttall
Cllr Caan

31st October 
2018

Annual report on the work 
of the Flood Risk 
Management Team

To consider progress on the flood risk management team 
following the last report in 2016.

Neal Thomas
Cllr Innes

19th 
December 
2018

13th 
February 
2019

27th March 
2019

Date to be 
decided

The Parking Enforcement 
Service

To look at the service provided, outlining the service, its structure, 
operating hours, income and approach to evening enforcement.

Colin Knight

Average Speed 
Enforcement Cameras

To consider the implementation of Average Speed Enforcement 
Cameras in the City.

Karen Segar
Cllr Innes

P
age 16



Communities and Neighbourhoods Work Programme 2018/19

3

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

Housing Development 
Infrastructure

To look at proposals for planned housing developments and 
infrastructure. Specifically, to look at the timetabling of these 
developments and associated roads and infrastructure which will 
be required to support population growth and movement. To seek 
assurances that infrastructure will be in place before homes are 
occupied. 

Colin Knight/ 
Mark Andrews

City Centre Parking To look at city centre parking at an appropriate time including the 
Restricted Parking Zones.

Colin Knight

Highways Infrastructure 
Asset Management Plan

That the Highway Infrastructure Asset Management Plan be 
considered by Scrutiny prior to its formal consideration and 
adoption by Cabinet. To include the risk management policy.

Neil Cowper/     
Danny Rawle

Ignite Programme Identified at the SCRUCO meeting on 10th May 2017 to go to SB4 
at an appropriate time. This is a 5-year programme. There are two 
parts to this work programme item; 
1) to invite Children’s Services and Whitefriars Housing to explain 
how they have amended processes as a results of the programme 
2) Ignite to be invited back to report on their findings of working 
with Children’s Services and Whitefriars Housing.

Helen Shankster
Emma Bates/ Sue 
Bent, Coventry Law 
Centre

Public Toilets To consider the availability of public toilets, particularly in the City 
Centre.

Richard Moon

Recycled Road Surface 
Materials

To find out more about the current trial and to visit one of the 
sites.

Neil Cowper
Cllr Innes

Social Housing Allocations To consider the supply and allocation of social housing, including 
supporting potential foster carers to provide extra bedrooms for 
LAC, an issue referred from SB2.

Mark Andrews
Adrianne Bellingeri
Cllr Ruane

Illegal Car Washes and the 
Impact on the Environment

Highlighted as an issue from the all scrutiny members meeting 
and referred from Scruco

20mph Zones in Urban 
Areas

Highlighted as an issue from the all scrutiny members meeting 
and referred from Scruco. Progress since the implementation of 
the policy developed by the T&F group

P
age 17



Communities and Neighbourhoods Work Programme 2018/19

4

P
age 18


	Agenda
	3 MInutes
	4 European City of Sport 2019
	5 Flytipping in Coventry
	6 Work Programme and Outstanding Issues 2018/19

